
1 
 

 

  
 

ADDENDUM #1 
Human Resources 

COBRA and Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA) Administration 
RFP # 7337-22 

 
 

May 5, 2022 
 
The attached addendum supersedes the original Information and Specifications 
regarding RFP # 7337-22 where it adds to, deletes from, clarifies or otherwise modifies. 
All other conditions and any previous addendums shall remain unchanged. 
 
Please note: Due to COVID-19, BIDS will only be accepted electronically by emailing 
purchasing@bouldercounty.org.  
 

 
1. Question: What is the desired claims funding arrangement and frequency of 

funding between the County and administrator?  
 
ANSWER: We would prefer monthly funding of FSA claims via direct ACH debit. 
 

2. Question: Will the vendor have ACH access to a County bank account for claims? 
If not, will prefunding be provided? 
 
ANSWER: We would prefer monthly funding of FSA claims via direct ACH debit. 
 

3. Question:  Will the County supply the vendor with a payroll file of actual FSA 
payroll deductions. If so, will the County conform to the vendor file specs? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, we currently upload a detailed file to RMR monthly based off of 
RMR’s file specs.   
 

4. Question: Will the County provide an electronic open enrollment and ongoing 
file for new hires, terminations and changes? If so, will the County conform to 
the vendor file specs? 
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ANSWER: Yes, the county provides weekly file interfaces of enrollments, 
terminations, and changes. We can configure our file format to meet vendor 
file specs.  
 

5. Question: Is the COBRA administrator expected to pay carriers directly?  Or can 
COBRA premiums be remitted to the County on a monthly basis? 
 
ANSWER: No, vendors are not expected to pay carriers directly. COBRA 
premiums are currently remitted to the county on a monthly basis. 
 

6. Question: Can you disclose the current Per Participant Per Month FSA 
administrative fee?  Does this fee include the debit card or is that an additional 
fee? 
 
ANSWER: $2.75 PPPM, includes debit card. 
 

7. Question: How does the County pay for COBRA?  Per notice basis or per insured 
employee per month?  
 
ANSWER: Per Benefit Enrolled Employee per Month. 
 

8. Question: Can you disclose the current COBRA pricing? 
 
ANSWER: $0.21 per benefit enrolled employee per month. 
 

9. Question: What is the County’s COBRA activity - Approximately, how many terms 
per year?  How many new hires?  
 
ANSWER: Average monthly COBRA events is 20. Average monthly new hires is 
28. 
 

10. Question: When is open enrollment? 
 
ANSWER: Typically, the first 2 or 3 weeks of November. Dates have not been 
set yet for this Fall. 
 

11. Question: How many onsite enrollment meetings will be required/expected and 
at how many different locations? 
 
ANSWER: None are expected at this time. The county works with Aon’s 
enrollment counselors to conduct open enrollment.  The request of the bidding 
vendor is that you provide a 30-minute training to the enrollment counselors 
about the county’s FSA benefit so that they are knowledgeable to help 
employees. 
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12. Question: How long has the County been with the current vendor? 

 
ANSWER: Since 2012. 
 

13. Question: Are there any service issues with the current administrator? 
 
ANSWER: None. 
 

14. Question: How many locations branches and/or locations? 
 
ANSWER: The county has 20 departments with roughly as many locations 
spread across the county. 
 

15. Question: What is the estimated number of administrative users or HR contacts? 
 
ANSWER: Five, including staff from HR Benefits, Payroll, and IT. 
 

16. Question: What was the number of insured employees in 1/1/21 & 1/1/20? 
 
ANSWER: There are approximately 2000 benefit eligible employees and 
roughly 1700 enrolled in medical for 2022. Total headcount and enrollment 
have been stable over the years. 
 

17. Question: What is the population of COBRA eligible former employees who have 
not elected COBRA continuation, but are still within their election period? Please 
exclude beneficiaries. 
 
ANSWER: There are currently 74 participants pending COBRA election.   
 

18. Question: What is the average number of COBRA qualifying events per month?  
 
ANSWER: See Question 9. 
 

19. Question: What is the average number of new hires per month?  
 
ANSWER: See Question 9. 
 

20. Question: What is the average number of terminations per month?  
 
ANSWER: See Question 9. 
 

21. Question: What is the average COBRA Medical Premium?  
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ANSWER:  Currently, there are 2 participants on the Hybrid plan (1 employee 
only rate of $793.05 and 1 employee plus spouse rate of $1583.47) and 2 
participants on the Consumer Choice plan (one employee only rate of $755.75 
and one employee plus spouse rate of $1508.60) for an average medical 
premium of $1,160 per month.  

22. Question: Are you looking for a vendor to carry out open enrollment for the 
COBRA population? 
 
ANSWER: Yes. 
 

23. Question: Are you looking for a vendor to conduct open enrollment for the 2023 
plan year? 
 
ANSWER: Yes. 
 

24. Question: What is the current enrollment per benefit plan? 
 
ANSWER: Please see the new attachment “2022 COBRA Enrollment” as it 
provides both current COBRA enrollments and active enrollments by plan and 
by tier included in this document. 
 

25. Question: Who is the current HRIS/Benefits administrator? 
 
ANSWER: Kronos/Dimensions. 
 

26. Question: What is the current pricing for COBRA & FSA administrative services? 
 
ANSWER: See Questions 6 and 8. 
 

27. Question: Is the County seeking a single provider for all requested services?  
 
ANSWER: Yes. 
 

28. Question: What is the ideal contract length for service? 
 
ANSWER: Five years, on an annual renewal basis, with at least 3 years with a 
guaranteed fee, preferably 5. 
 

29. Question: Please provide a sample eligibility file.   
 
ANSWER: See spreadsheets attached separately. 
 

30. Question: Please provide the following additional dates to your RFP timeline. 
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Proposer short list date – TBD, probably June or July 
Presentation date(s) – TBD, probably June or July 
Contract award date – TBD, probably August 
Implementation dates – TBD, probably August through December 
Contract effective date – January 1, 2023 
Open Enrollment date(s) – TBD, probably first 2 or 3 weeks of November 
Fiscal year start & end dates – 1/1-12/31 

 
ANSWER: Please see above. 
 

31. Question: Are there any pain points to mitigate? 
 

ANSWER: None. 
 

32. Question: What are the current administrative fees billed to the employer? 
 

ANSWER: See Questions 6 and 8. 
 

33. Question: Does the employer or participant pay the FSA fee? 
 

ANSWER: Employer. 
 

34. Question: Is it correct that COBRA services are needed only for dental and vision  
plans? 
 
ANSWER: No. COBRA services are needed for medical, dental, and vision. 
 

35. Question: What is the average number per month:  
COBRA participants 
New hires 
COBRA qualifying events 
 
ANSWER: See Question 9. 
 

36. Question:  Are we to submit a copy of our services agreement? It appears the  
County has their own agreement. 
 
ANSWER: The county is required to use its own professional services 
agreement. Your standard agreement may end up as an attachment to the 
county’s document. If you have different language that will be required as an 
edit to our professional services agreement, please submit that with your 
proposal. 
 

37. Question: How are claims funded? 
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ANSWER: COBRA claims are self-funded by the county. 
 

38. Question:  Regarding Appendix A Procurement Guidelines Terms and Conditions,  
Will a response be rejected if it takes exceptions to Appendix A? 
 
ANSWER: No, a bid will not be rejected, but please outline any exceptions and 
include it as an attachment to your bid. 
 

39. Question: Regarding Insurance and W9 requirements,  
Will a response be rejected if it takes exceptions to the Insurance and W-9  
Requirements? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, there can be no exceptions to the W-9 and insurance 
requirements listed in the RFP. 
 

40. Question: Who does the group utilize for Ben admin / HRIS systems or payroll /  
enrollment platforms? 
 
ANSWER: UKG’s Workforce Central is our current HRIS and we are in the 
process of upgrading to UKG Dimensions for a 1/1/2023 start date.  For the 
past several years, the county has utilized Aon’s U2X platform for enrollments. 
That may be changing to PlanSource for this Fall’s open enrollment, but that is 
not certain at this time.   

 
41. Question: What is the group currently paying for FSA and COBRA with RMR? 
 

ANSWER: See Questions 6 and 8. 
 

42. Question: We see you offer an HDHP, are we able to include HSA along with FSA  
and COBRA? If so, please confirm the following: 

 
       Number of HSA participants: 
       Current Assets under Management: 
       Employer contribution amount (if offering): 

  Who is the current administrator: 
  What are you currently paying: 
 
  ANSWER: The HSA is administered through the medical vendor and is not part 
of this RFP. 

 
43. Question:  COBRA Details: What is the current turnover rate and new  

 hires per month? 
 



7 
 

 ANSWER: See Question 9. 
 

44. Question:  Is Boulder County currently working on any other marketing projects  
(medical carriers, ben admin, etc.)? 
 
ANSWER: Not this year, no. 

 
45. Question: How likely are they to change vendors this year? What might prevent  

them from making a move? 
 
ANSWER: The county considers the marketplace and available administrative 
solutions every five years to ensure they are receiving the best service, price, 
and tools/solutions for the county and members. Bidder pricing, services, and 
file requirements would be things considered when determining if a move 
makes sense. 

 
46. Question: What other vendors are included in this RFP? 

 
ANSWER: We have reached out to 234 potential vendors. 
 

47. Question: What are the key decision factors when choosing a new vendor? 
 

ANSWER: Service, price, and tools/solutions. 
 

48. Question: What are the primary reasons the County issued the RFP? 
 

ANSWER: Procurement requirements and a desire to check the market to 
ensure the current contract terms are not outdated. 
 

49. Question: What specific concerns or service issues does the County have with  
their current vendor? 
 
ANSWER: None. 

 
50. Question: How long has RMR been administering the FSA and COBRA benefit? 

 
ANSWER: Since 2012. 
 

51. Question: Please share the monthly FSA and COBRA fees the County pays? 
 

ANSWER: Please see Questions 6 and 8. 
 

52. Question: Please share any FSA/COBRA fees charged at renewal, annually, or ad- 
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 hoc charges, including, but not limited to, cost of additional debit cards, 
enrollment packets, non-discrimination testing, plan documents, and COBRA 
open enrollment services. 
 
ANSWER: Boulder County is only charged an additional fee for COBRA open 
enrollment services. The fee is $8 per participant, with a minimum charge of 
$50. 

 
53. Question: Who administers the HSA for the County?  

 
ANSWER: HSA Bank via the Cigna medical contract. 
 

54. Question: What is the average length of time a QB remains on COBRA? 
 

ANSWER: Roughly 4 months seems to be the most prevalent for Boulder 
County. 
 

55. Question: Does the County offer Retiree Billing, a continuation of group medical  
benefits for retirees?  If yes, what are the number of Retirees currently enrolled? 
 
ANSWER: No. Retirees are eligible for PERA Care separate from the County. 

 
56. Question: Does the County currently have file feeds set up?  If yes, is the file  

integration with the current vendor and what Payroll/HRIS vendor? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, the county currently provides weekly file interfaces of 
enrollments, terminations, and changes from our UKG Workforce Central HRIS 
system to RMR’s SFTP site. We can configure our file format to meet vendor 
file specs. 

 
57. Question: Is Boulder County open to accepting bids on the HSA business as well?   

If so, can you provide the number is HSA account holders? 
 
ANSWER: No thank you.  That service is not out to bid at this time. 

 
58. Question: What is the benefits administration system/platform utilized for  

enrollment? 
 
ANSWER: See Question 40. 

 
59. Question: What payroll system(s) will need to receive files? 

 
ANSWER: Kronos/Dimensions. 
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60. Question: Are plan SDP’s available for the FSA and DCFSA accounts that can be  
shared with us? 
 
ANSWER: We’re not certain what an SDP is. There are no SPDs for FSA 
accounts, so that doesn’t exist either. We have included the county’s benefits 
guide in this document and page 13 covers the FSA benefit. 

 
61. Question: Is there a need to convert balances from another prior account? 

 
ANSWER: No. 
 

62. Question: Do you require any special banking or funding arrangements? 
 

ANSWER:  See Question 1. 
 

63. Question: Are there any special (i.e. union) considerations? 
 

ANSWER: None at this time. 
 

64. Question: Will we be running out of any of the plans we are implementing? 
 

ANSWER: No.  
 

65. Question: Does Boulder County consent to offshore resources being used for  
back-office processes (i.e. claims processing)? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, as long as the offshore resources are employees of your 
organization directly and not contract employees.  
 

66. Question: Does the County provide benefits for Retirees? If so, with the  
understanding that they are not included in this RFP’s scope of work, is the 
administration of those Retiree benefits secured via RFP? 
 
ANSWER: No. Retirees have access to PERA Care through the public sector 
state retirement system. 

 
67. Question: As a privately held company what information can we provide in lieu  

of a public rating to verify our financial stability and integrity? 
 
ANSWER: An annual report, annual balance statement would suffice. 
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Submittal Instructions: 
 

Submittals are due at the email box only, listed below, for time and date recording on 
or before 2:00 p.m. Mountain Time on May 19, 2022. 
 
Please note that email responses to this solicitation are limited to a maximum of 
50MB capacity.  
 
NO ZIP FILES OR LINKS TO EXTERNAL SITES WILL BE ACCEPTED. THIS INCLUDES 
GOOGLE DOCS AND SIMILAR SITES. ALL SUBMITTALS MUST BE RECEIVED AS AN 
ATTACHMENT (E.G. PDF, WORD, EXCEL).  
 
Electronic submittals must be received in the email box listed below.  Submittals 
sent to any other box will NOT be forwarded or accepted.  This email box is only 
accessed on the due date of your questions or proposals. Please use the Delivery 
Receipt option to verify receipt of your email. It is the sole responsibility of the 
proposer to ensure their documents are received before the deadline specified 
above. Boulder County does not accept responsibility under any circumstance for 
delayed or failed email or mailed submittals. 
 
Email purchasing@bouldercounty.org; identified as RFP # 7337-22 in the 

subject line. 
 
All proposals must be received and time and date recorded at the purchasing email by 
the above due date and time.  Sole responsibility rests with the Offeror to see that their 
bid is received on time at the stated location(s).  Any bid received after due date and 
time will be returned to the bidder.  No exceptions will be made. 
 
The Board of County Commissioners reserve the right to reject any and all bids, to waive 
any informalities or irregularities therein, and to accept the bid that, in the opinion of 
the Board, is in the best interest of the Board and of the County of Boulder, State of 
Colorado. 

mailto:purchasing@bouldercounty.org


11 
 

 

 
 

RECEIPT OF LETTER 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
 
May 5, 2022 
 
 
Dear Vendor: 
 
This is an acknowledgment of receipt of Addendum #1 for RFP #7337-22, COBRA and 
Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA) Administration. 
 
In an effort to keep you informed, we would appreciate your acknowledgment of 
receipt of the preceding addendum.  Please sign this acknowledgment and email it back 
to purchasing@bouldercounty.org as soon as possible. If you have any questions, or 
problems with transmittal, please call us at 303-441-3525. This is also an 
acknowledgement that the vendor understands that due to COVID-19, BIDS will only be 
accepted electronically by emailing purchasing@bouldercounty.org. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.  This information is time and date 
sensitive; an immediate response is requested.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Boulder County Purchasing 
 
Signed by: _______________________________ Date: _______________ 
 
Name of Company_____________________________________________ 
 

 

mailto:purchasing@bouldercounty.org
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Jan-2022 Feb-2022 Mar-2022 Apr-2022 May-2022 Jun-2022 Jul-2022 Aug-2022 Sep-2022 Oct-2022 Nov-2022 Dec-2022
Hybrid Plan
Employee 564 564 562
Spouse 102 102 103
Children 170 169 168
Family 171 172 176

Cobra - Hybrid Plan
Employee 1 1 1
Employee + Spouse 2 1 1
Employee + Children 0 0 0
Employee + Family 0 0 0

Consumer Choice Plan
Employee 406 409 411
Spouse 91 88 90
Children 106 110 111
Family 176 175 173

Cobra - Consumer 
Choice Plan
Employee 2 1 1
Employee + Spouse 1 1 1
Employee + Children 0 0 0
Employee + Family 0 0 0

Dental
Employee 1835 1836 1841
Spouse 220 219 221
Children 267 266 266
Family 378 379 381

Cobra - Dental
Employee 4 3 3
Employee + Spouse 3 2 2
Employee + Children 1 1 1
Employee + Family 1 1 1

Vision
Employee 905 909 908
Spouse 229 228 229
Children 256 255 254
Family 363 363 367

Cobra - Vision
Employee 5 4 4
Employee + Spouse 3 2 2
Employee + Children 0 0 0
Employee + Family 2 2 2

Boulder County Enrollment
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